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1903
2021 12 31

135,378,536.83 17,444,878
2.2 143,611,108.18 18,505,727
2.2 11 4,316,052.46 556,167
547,997.28 70,615
148,475,157.92 19,132,509
8 64,096.36 8,259
30,070.73 3,875
6 13,302.43 1,714
12,337.01 1,590
10,917.78 1,407
4 9,676.11 1,247
5 4,836.63 623
3 3,751.53 483
7 1,211.36 156
7.22 1
150,207.16 19,356
148,324,950.76 19,113,153
35,719,242.26 3,275,455
122,430,183.28 15,776,353

3,443,922.318
11,970,427.875

10.372 951
10.228 1,318
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1903
2021 12 31

2.4 1,363,537.39 175,705
1,363,537.39 175,705
8 948,202.44 122,185
6 196,806.99 25,361
4 143,130.24 18,444
5 71,562.45 9,222
30,188.46 3,890
20,362.75 2,624
7 17,895.20 2,306
16,967.58 2,186
3 15,040.90 1,938
9,023.66 1,163
2,092.37 270
260.18 34
281.58 36
1,471,814.80 189,658
(108,277.41) (13,953)
2.2 4,888,938.73 629,989
2.3 (1,552,276.22) (200,026)
2.2 (2,236,673.99) (288,218)
991,711.11 127,792
2.2 3,972,781.89 511,933
2.2 (7.124,939.64) (918,120)
(2,160,446.64) (278,395)
(76,458,244.73) (9,852,409)
(76,458,244..73) (9,852,409)
226,943,642.13 29,243,958

148,324,950.76 19,113,153
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1903
6,696,188.423 21,970,160.040
5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358

(1,987,517.573) (5,884,089.483)
3,443,922.318 11,970,427.875

67,871,498.99 6,223,816 221,102,214.63 28,491,231
56,364,791.10 5,168,651 183,828,220.19 23,688,104
35,719,242.26 3,275,455 122,430,183.28 15,776,353

10.136 929 10.064 1,297
10.378 952 10.296 1,327
10.372 951 10.228 1,318
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2018 12 10
2019 29
100
2023 12 29
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10.2

11

CGML
2021 12 31

11.1

17,564,003.82 CALL AUD Index S42 2023 12 18 1,538,606.74 1,501,177.84

11.2

90,001,262.09 CALL USD Index S42 2023 12 18 7,632,106.99 3,227,769.26

8,747,524 .37 4,316,052.46

12
2021 12 31

1.3794

13
CovID 19

14
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1903
2021 12 31

ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON 27DEC23
34,439,218 AUD 32,765,472.00 34,132,708.96 95.56
32,765,472.00 34,132,708.96 95.56
32,765,472.00 34,132,708.96  95.56

ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON 27DEC23
119,692,380 111,625,113.60 118,866,502.58 97.09

111,625,113.60 118,866,502.58 97.09

111,625,113.60 118,866,502.58 97.09

135,378,536.83 143,611,108.18 96.82

11
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2021

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Notes USD_
Assets
Investments
At cost 135,378,536.83
At market value 2.2 143,611,108.18
Options purchased at market value 22,11 4,316,052 46
Cash at bank 547 99728
Total assets 148,475,157.92
Liabilities
Distmbutor fees payable 8 6409636
Professional fees payable 30,070.73
Management fees payable & 13,302.43
Legal fees payable 12,337.01
Printing and publishing fees payable 10,917.78
Administrator fees payable 4 9,676.11
Custodian fees payable 5 483663
Trustes fees payable 3 375153
Agent Company fees payable 7 1,211.36
Other fees payable 722
Total liabilities 150,207.16
"Total net assets 148,324,950.76
MNet asset value
AUD Denominated Units AUD 35,719,242 26
LSD Demnominated Units sD 122 ,430,183.28
Number of units outstanding
AUD Denominated Units 3,443,922.318
USD Denominated Units 11,970,427.875
Net asset value per unit
AUD Denominated Units ALID 10.372
USD Denominated Units ush 10.228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financal staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2021

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Notes LsD
Income
Interest income on investments 24 1,363,537.39
Total income 1,363,537.39
Expenses
Distributor fees 8 S48 202 44
Management fees (] 196,806 .99
Administrator fees 4 143,130 .24
Custodian fees 5 71,562.45
Professional expenses 30,188 .46
Legal expenses 20,362.75
Agent Company fees 7 17,895.20
Printing and publishing expenses 16,967.58
Trustee fees 3 15,040.90
Safekeeping fees 902366
Bank interest 2,092.37
Transaction fees 260,18
Other fees 281.58
Total expenses 1,471 814.80
Net investment loss {108.277.41)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financal staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2021

(continued)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

MHet investment loss (108,277.41)
Net realised:

Gain on investments 2.2 4 B88,938.73
Loss on foreign exchange 2.3 (1,552,276.22)
Loss on options 22 (2,236,673.99)
Total net investment loss and realised gain for the year 991,711.11
Net unrealised:

Appreciation on options 22 3972,781.89
Depreciation on investments 22 (7,124,939 .64)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (2,160,446 64)

Movement in capital:

Redemptions of units (76,458,244.73)
Net movement in capital {76,458244.73)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 226,943 642.13
Net assets at the end of the year 148,324,950.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statistical information UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Number of units outstanding at the end of

ALID Denominated Units

USD Denominated Units

the year
December 31, 2019 6,696,188.423 21,970,160,040
December 31, 2020 5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358
nurmber of units redssmead {1,9687,517.573) {5,884,089.483)
December 31, 2021 3,443,922.318 11,970,427 875
Net assets at the end of the year AJD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
December 31, 2019 AUD 67 871,4998.99 UsSD 221,102,214.63
December 31, 2020 ALD 56,364,791.10 UsD 183,828,220.19
December 31, 2021 AUD 35,719,242.26 USD 122,430,183 .28
“Net assets per unit AUD Denominated Units USD Denominated Units
December 31, 2019 AUD 10.136 USD 10.064
December 31, 2020 AUD 10.378 UsSD 1029
December 31, 2021 AUD 10.372 LUsD 10.228
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the "Series Trust™), a series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and a supplemental trust deed made on
December 10, 2018 between the Trustee and the Manager. The Series Trust commenced operations
on March 29, 2019 being the first capital subscription received.

Investment objective and policies

The Series Trust's investment objective is to provide investors in each class of Units with a return which
is linked to:

(a) a portfolio which aims to achieve a targeted return of 100% of the Issue Price of each class

of Units (the "Target Redemption Level") at the Maturity Date (*) (in respect of each class
of Units, the "Fixed Portion"); and

{b) a portfolio which provides an exposure to the Index of each class of Units (in respect of
each class of Units, the "Active Portion™).

(*): The "Maturity Date" means December 29, 2023 or such other date as the Manager may
determine.

The allocation between the Active Portion and the Fixed Portion in respect of each class of Units was
fixed shortly after the launch date of the Series Trust with the objective that the minimurm amount that
is necessary in order to achieve the Target Redemption Level in respect of each class of Units would
be allocated to the Fixed Portion for each class of Units, with the remaining balance being allocated to
the Active Portion for each class of Units.

The Fixed Portion seeks to achieve the Target Redemption Level for each class of Units at the Maturity
Date by providing exposure to the relevant Notes for each class of Units (i.e. in respect of the USD
Denominated Units, the USD Notes, and in respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the AUD Notes, the
"Fixed Portion Transactions"). Ensemble Investment Corporation SA (the "Note Issuer") issued each of
the Motes at a discounted price to their expected redemption price prior to the Maturity Date. Each of
the Notes has its maturity date that falls on or before the Maturity Date and are designed to achieve
the Target Redemption Level for such class of Units at their maturity.

The Series Trust, for the account of each class of Units, will receive a coupon of approximately 0.77%
per annum of notional amount of the respective Notes {denominated in USD in respect of the USD
Notes, and denominated in AUD in respect of the AUD Motes), calculated and accrued daily and payable
in arrears on a monthly basis, pursuant to the terms of the relevant Fixed Portion Transactions, which
will be used to settle certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the Series Trust.

The Active Portion will, through the Lookback Call Option Transactions, provide investors in each class
of Units with an exposure to the Index applicable to the relevant class of Units (i.e. in respect of the
USD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset USD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "USD Index"), and in
respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset AUD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "AUD
Index") (each, an "Index" and together, the "Indices").
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity (continued)

The rules and methodology applied by the Index are substantially identical to one another, save that
because the USD Index is denominated in USD, and the AUD Index is denominated in AUD, hedging
arrangements between the applicable Class Base Currency and the constituents of the Core Asset and
the Reserve Asset which are denominated in currencies other than the relevant Class Base Currency
will operate differently in each case of USD Index and the AUD Index.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg.

2.2 - Valuation of the investments

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue, The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places (according to natural
rounding convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as
determined by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes. In determining the Net Asset Value,
the Administrator will follow the following valuation policies and procedures:

(a) Subject as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c) below, all calculations based on the value of
investments listed, quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange, commodities exchange,
futures exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference
to the last traded price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the
principal exchange for such investments as at the close of business in such place on the day as
of which such calculation is to be made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such
place, on the last business day for such place preceding the Valuation Day; and where there is
no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures exchange or over-the-counter market for a
particular investment, the value of such investmenkt will be calculated by reference to the latest
available price of such investment quoted by any person, firm or institution making a market in
that investment (and if there shall be maore than one such market maker then such particular
market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate); provided
always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, in its discretion considers that the
prices on another exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the circumstances a fairer criterion of
value in relation to any such Investment, it may instruct the adoption of such prices;

(b} if no last traded price, official closing price and other price quatations are available as provided
in paragraph (a) above, the value of the relevant investment will be determined from time to
time in such manner as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) shall determine;
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

(c) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any
Investment pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) above, the Administrator is entitled to use and rely
upon price data and/or information provided by any mechanised and/or electronic systems of
price dissemination and the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last
traded prices, official closing price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (a)
or (b) above;

(d) short-term money market investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

(e) the value of any investment (whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency other
than the Functional Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate
(whether official or otherwise) which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances
having regard to any premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;

(f) option transactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments will be
valued based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent
for such option transactions or other over-the-counter derivative transactions/instruments is
also the counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual
capacity, the Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of
such valuation with a frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value,
and

(g) nobwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some
other method of valuation to be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair
value of the relevant Investment.

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust's financial statements is presented in US dollars (USD). Classes of units are
dencminated in USD and Australian Dollar (AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting year. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

Unrealised and realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the
Statement of operations and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments and options.
Realised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on sale of investments and options are included in
realized gains or losses on investments and options. Other net foreign exchange gains or losses are
included in realized gains and losses on foreign exchange in the Statement of operations and changes
in net assets.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 - Interest income on investments

Interest income is accrued on a daily basis.

Note 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee, a related party to the Series Trusk, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000 per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in
dalrrears.

Note 4 - Administrator fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust an administration fee of
0.08% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued
daily and payable monthly in arrears. The Calculation Amount is the issue price applicable to the
relevant class of Units multiplied by the number of Units of such class of Units in issue at the time of
calculation.

Mote 5 - Custodian fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust a custody fee of 0.04% per
annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units calculated and accrued daily and
payable menthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Management fees

The Manager, a related party to the Series Trust, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a management fee of 0,11% per annum of the Calculation Amaount in respect of each class
of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 7 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of
Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 8 - Distributor fees

The Distributor, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a fee of up ko 0.53% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units
calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 9 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the option transactions, the Trustee,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered into a collateral arrangement with the option
counterparty. This arrangement is based on an industry-standard ISDA (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association) Master Agreement and a CSA {Credit Support Annex). In terms of this
arrangement, the option counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Saries Trust. The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2021, the amount of collateral required is USD 4,125,111 and the amount of
collateral received from Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") and deposited into a collateral
account for the benefit of the Series Trust s USD 2,580,000. In accordance with the collateral
agreement, the difference between the collateral required and actual collateral received needs to be
above USD 3,000,000 in the case where CGML needs to pay collateral to the series trust with the
minimum transfer being USD 250,000. In this case the difference between the collateral required and
already received being USD 1,545,111 is below the USD 3,000,000 threshold for transfer.

Note 10 - Taxation

10.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has received an undertaking
from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of 50 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements.

10.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be subject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced in other
countries,

Note 11 - Option contracts

Lookback call option transactions that provides the Active portion are entered into between the
Manager, acting as agent for the Trustee, and CGML,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

(As at December 31, 2021)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Note 11 - Option contracts (continued)

As at December 31, 2021, the Series Trust has the following open lookback call options:

11.1 - Option contracts of AUD Denominated Units

Quantity Index Option oy Maturity Cost  Market value
17,564,003.82 CALL AUD Index 542 AUD 18/12/2023  1,538606.74 1,501,177.84

11.2 - Option contracts of USD Denominated Units

nti Index Opti ocy Maturity Cost  Market value
$0,001,262.09 CALL USD Index 542 UsD 18/12/2023 7632,106.99 3227,769.26
Total (combined) (==} Cost  Market value
UsD 8,747,524.37 4,316,052 46

Note 12 - Exchange rates

The exchange rates against USD used as at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Cu Exc e rate
AUD 1.37%4

Note 13 - Significant events during the year

The Manager has made an assessment of the situation of the Series Trust in the context of the
COVID-19 pandemic and, while financial markets have been very volatile and the worldwide health
situation remains difficult, confirms that it has no plan to terminate the Series Trust as of the date of
the foreseeable future. The Manager will continue to closely monitor the situation of the Series Trust
in the best interests of the unitholders.

Note 14 - Subsequent events

The war in Ukraine has led to higher inflationary pressures and an increase in velatility, although it
could delay the expected restrictive monetary policies of the European Central Bank. The Series Trust
did not have direct exposure to Russia's companies and no commercial relationship with Russia or
Russian citizens.

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust concludes that there are no other significant
subsequent events that require adjustments andfor disclosure to these financial statements.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Schedule of investments as at December 31, 2021

Targst Setting at Maturity Fund 1903
AUD Denominated Units

Nominal Description Currency Cost Market value Ratio®

Note AUD AUD AUD %

34,439,218 ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON AID 32,765,472.00 34,132, 70896 9556
27DEC23 AUD

“Total Note 32,765472.00 _ 34,132,708.96  95.5%

“Total investment 32,765472.00 34,132, 70896  95.56

USD Denominated Units

Neminal Description Currency Cost Market value Ratio™

Note UsD usD UsD %

119,692,380 ENSEMBLE INV CORP FIXED COUPON USD 11162511360 118,866,502.58 97.09
27DEC23 USD

Total Note 11162511360 118,866,502.58 97.09

“Total investment 111625113.60 118,866,502.58 97.09

“Total investments (combined) USD  135378,536.83 143611108.18 096.82

This schedule contains infarmation on the investments in notes only and does not include the information on the option
conbracts. Information on the option contracts is disclosed in Mote 11 to these financial statements.

(*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Classification of investments by country and by economic sector UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Total {(combined)
Classification of investments by country and by economic sector
Counitry Economic sector Rabio (%) ™
_Luxembourg
Other Financial Service Activities, Except Insurance And Pension Funding N.E.C. 96.82
Total investments (combined) 96.82

This schedule contains information on the investments in notes only and does not include the information on the option
contracts. Information an the option contracts is disclosed in Note 11 to these financial statements.

(*) Weight of the market value against the total net assets expressed in %.
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1903
2020 12 31

206,039,049.59 26,550,192
2.2 221,396,560.58 28,529,161
10 4,812,822.22 620,180
938,627.68 120,952
227,148,010.48 29,270,293
7 97,119.65 12,515
31,556.01 4,066
5 20,157.65 2,598
16,738.70 2,157
4 14,659.39 1,889
11,205.21 1,444
7,329.30 944
3,765.08 485
6 1,829.81 236
7.55 1
204,368.35 26,335
226,943,642.13 29,243,958
56,364,791.10 5,168,651
183,828,220.19 23,688,104

5,431,439.891
17,854,517.358

10.378 952
10.296 1,327
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1903
2020 12 31

2.4 1,918,568.05 247,227

1,918,568.05 247,227

7 1,327,316.38 171,038

5 275,479.04 35,498

4 200,345.35 25,817

4 100,171.04 12,908

30,935.98 3,986

6 25,041.43 3,227

17,484.27 2,253

3 14,850.09 1,914

13,288.46 1,712

11,872.47 1,530

1,931.95 249

151.91 20

2,018,868.37 260,151

(100,300.32) (12,925)

2.3 3,767,696.38 485,505

3,191,411.78 411,245

(2,025,917.53) (261,060)

4,832,890.31 622,766

9,796,906.54 1,262,429

(4,868,362.13) (627,337)

9,761,434.72 1,257,858

(51,339,485.31) (6,615,606)

(51,339,485.31) (6,615,606)

268,521,692.72 34,601,705

226,943,642.13 29,243,958
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1903
6,696,188.423 21,970,160.040
(1,264,748.532) (4,115,642.682)
5,431,439.891 17,854,517.358
67,871,498.99 6,223,816 221,102,214.63 28,491,231

56,364,791.10 5,168,651  183,828,220.19 23,688,104
10.136 929 10.064 1,297
10.378 952 10.296 1,327
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1903
2020 12 31
1903
2018 12 10
2019 29
100
2023 12 29
0.77
VTS

VT5
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ISDA CSA
2020 12 31 2,664,613.17
CGML
2,440,000
250,000
9.1
2008 10 21 50
9.2
10
CGML
2020 12 31
10.1
27,700,343.45 CALL AUD Index S42 2023 12 18 2,426,550.10 1,509,408.33
10.2
134,140,857.98 CALL USD Index S42 2023 12 18 11,375,144.75 3,658,222.41
13,231,298.73 4,812,822.22
11

2020 12 31
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13

coviD 19
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of net assets as at December 31, 2020

Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Notes LED
Assets
Investmrents
At cost 206,039,049.59
At market value 2.2 221,396,560.58
Options purchased at market value 10 4,812 82222
Cash at bank 93862768
Total assets 227,148,010.48
Liabilities
Distributor fees payable 7 97,119.65
Professional fees payable 31,556.01
Management fees payable 5 20,157.65
Frinting and publishing fees payable 16,738.70
Administrator fees payable 4 14,659.39
Legal fees payable 11,20521
Custodian fees payable 4 7,329.30
Trustee fees payable 3 3,765.08
Agent Company fees payable 6 1,82981
Other fees payable 7.55
“Total liabilities 204,366.35_
“Total net assets 226,943 642.13
Net asset value
AUD Denominated Units ALD 56,364,791.10
USD Denorninated Units usp 183,828 220.19
Number of units nutﬂmﬁnn
AUD Denominated Units 5431439891
LSD Denorminated Units 17 854 517.358
Net asset value per unit
AUD Denominated Units ALD 10.378
LSD Denominated Units UspD 10.296

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020

Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Notes UsD
Income
Interest income on investments 24 1,918 568.05
Total income 1,918,568.05
Expenses
Distributor fees 7 1,327,316.38
Management fees 5 27547904
Administrator fees 4 20034535
Custadian fees 4 100,171 .04
Professional expenses 30,935.98
Agent Company fees [ 25,041.43
Printing and publishing expenses 17,484.27
Trustee fees 3 14.850.09
Legal expenses 13,288.46
Safekeeping fees 11,872.47
Bank interest 1,931.95
Transaction fees 15191

“Total expenses 2,018,868.37_

Net investment loss (100,300.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020
{continued)

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

Net investment loss {100,300.32)
Net realised:

Gain on foreign exchange 2.3 3,767,696.38
Gain on investments 3,191,411.78
Loss on opbions (2,025917.53)
Total net investment loss and realised gain for the year 4,832 890.31
Net unrealised:

Appreciation on investments 9,796,906.54
Depreciation on options (4,868,362.13)
MNetincrease in net assets resulting from operations 9,761,434.72

Movementin capital:

Redemptions of units (51,339,485.31)
Net movement in capital {51,339,485.31)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 268 521692.72
Net assets at the end of the year 226943642 .13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Statistical information UNAUDITED

Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Number of units outstanding at the end of

the year

AUD Denominated Units

USD Dencminated Units

December 31, 2019

nurmnber of units issued
number of units redeemed

December 31, 2020

6,696,188 423

{1,264,?48.5325

5,431,439.891

21,970,160.040

{4,115,642.682)
17,854,517.358

Het assets at the end of the year

December 31, 2019
December 31, 2020

AUD Denominated Units

AUD 67,871,498.99
AUD 56,364,791.10

USD Denominated Units

USD 221,102,214.63
USD 183,828,220.19

Net assets per unit

AUD Denominated Units

December 31, 2019
Decamber 31, 2020

AUD 10.136
AUD 10.378

IUSD Denominated Units

UsD 10,064
USD 10.296
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity

Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the "Series Trust”), a series trust of the Trust created
and established pursuant to the Trust Deed and a supplemental trust deed made on
December 10, 2018 between the Trustee and the Manager. The Series Trust commenced operations
on March 29, 2019 being the first capital subscription received.

Investment objective and policies

The Series Trust's investment objective is to provide investors in each class of Units with a return which
is linked to:

(a) a portfelio which aims to achieve a targeted return of 100% of the Issue Price of each class
of Units (the "Target Redemption Level") at the Maturity Date {*) (in respect of each class

of Units, the "Fixed Portion"); and

(b) a portfolio which provides an exposure to the Index of each class of Units (in respect of
each class of Units, the "Active Portion").

(*): The "Maturity Date" means December 29, 2023 or such other date as the Manager may
determine.

The allocation between the Active Portion and the Fixed Portion in respect of each class of Units was
fixed shortly after the launch date of the Series Trust with the objective that the minimum amount that
is necessary in order to achieve the Target Redemption Level in respect of each class of Units would
be allocated to the Fixed Portion for each class of Units, with the remaining balance being allocated to
the Active Portion for each class of Units.

The Fixed Portion seeks to achieve the Target Redemption Level for each class of Units at the Maturity
Date by providing exposure to the relevant Motes for each class of Units (i.e. in respect of the USD
Denominated Units, the USD Notes, and in respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the AUD Notes, the
"Fixed Portion Transactions"). Ensemble Investment Corporation SA (the "Note Issuer™) issued each of
the Notes at a discounted price to their expected redemption price prior to the Maturity Date, Each of
the Notes has its maturity date that falls on or before the Maturity Date and are designed to achieve
the Target Redemption Level for such class of Units at their maturity.

The Series Trust, for the account of each class of Units, will receive a coupon of approximately 0.77%
per annum of notional amount of the respective Notes {denominated in USD in respect of the USD
Notes, and denominated in AUD in respect of the AUD Notes), calculated and accrued daily and payable
in arrears on a monthly basis, pursuant to the terms of the relevant Fixed Portion Transactions, which
will be used to settle certain operating costs and expenses in respect of the Series Trust.

The Active Portion will, through the Lookback Call Option Transactions, provide investors in each class
of Units with an exposure to the Index applicable to the relevant class of Units (i.e. in respect of the
USD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset USD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "USD Index"), and in
respect of the AUD Denominated Units, the Global Multi Asset AUD VT 5 Series 2 Index (the "AUD
Index") (each, an "Index" and together, the “Indices").
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 1 - Activity (continued)

The rules and methodology applied by the Index are substantially identical to one another, save that
because the USD Index is denominated in USD, and the AUD Index is denominated in AUD, hedging
arrangements bebween the applicable Class Base Currency and the constituents of the Core Asset and
the Reserve Asset which are denominated in currencies other than the relevant Class Base Currency
will operate differently in each case of USD Index and the AUD Index,

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1 - Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg.

2.2 - Valuation of the investments

The Administrator will calculate and publish the Net Asset Value per Unit in the applicable Class Base
Currency on the Closing Date and on each Valuation Day.

The Net Asset Value per Unit will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Units
in issue, The Net Asset Value per Unit will be rounded to 3 decimal places (according to natural
rounding convention with 0.0005 being rounded up) or to such other number of decimal places as
determined by the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee. In determining the Net Asset Value,
the Administrator will follow the following valuation policies and procedures:

(a) Subject as provided in paragraphs (b} and {c) below, all calculations based on the value of
Investments listed, quoted, traded or dealt in on any stock exchange, commodities exchange,
futures exchange or over-the-counter market will be made by the Administrator by reference
to the last traded price or official closing price according to its local rules and customs on the
principal exchange for such Investments as at the close of business in such place on the day
as of which such calculation is to be made, if the Valuation Day is not a business day for such
place, on the last business day for such place preceding the Valuation Day; and where there is
no stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures exchange or over-the-counter market for a
particular Investment, the value of such Investment will be calculated by reference to the latest
available price of such Investment quoted by any person, firm or instituion making a market
in that Investment (and if there shall be more than one such market maker then such particular
market maker as the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, may designate); provided
always that if the Manager, in consultation with the Trustee, in its discretion considers that the
prices on another exchange or prices provided by any independent data provider, including
Bloomberg or Interactive Data Corporation provide in all the circumstances a fairer criterion of
value in relation to any such Investment, it may instruct the adoption of such prices;

(b} if no last traded price, official closing price and other price quotations are available as provided
in paragraph (a) above, the value of the relevant Investment will be determined from time to
time in such manner as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) shall determine;
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 - Valuation of the investments (continued)

{c) for the purpose of ascertaining the listed, quoted, traded or market dealing prices of any
Investment pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) above, the Administrator is entitled to use and rely
upon price data and/or information provided by any mechanised andfor electronic systems of
price dissemination and the prices provided by any such system will be deemed to be the last
traded prices, official closing price, or the latest available price for the purpose of paragraph (a)
or (b) above;

{d) short-term money market Investments and bank deposits will be valued at cost plus accrued
interest;

(e) the value of any Investment (whether of a security or cash) denominated in a currency other
than the Functional Currency shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate
{(whether official or otherwise) which the Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances
having regard to any premium or discount which may be relevant and to costs of exchange;

{f) option transactions and other over-the-counter derivative transactionsfinstruments will be
valued based on the net present value of their expected cash flows. Where the calculation agent
for such option transactions or cther over-the-counter derivative transactionsf/instruments is
also the counterparty, and in order to avoid any conflicts of interests arising from such dual
capacity, the Manager or its delegate will be required to perform tolerance checks in respect of
such valuation with a frequency at least equal to that of the calculation of the Net Asset Value;
and

(a) notwithstanding the foregoing, the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee) may permit some
other method of valuation ko be used if it considers that such valuation better reflects the fair

value of the relevant Investment.

2.3 - Foreign currency translation

The Series Trust is denominated in US dollar (USD). Classes of units are denominated in USD and
Australian Dollar (AUD).

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the US dollar are translated into USD at
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting year. Transactions expressed in foreign currencies
are translated into USD at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

Realised gains or losses on foreign exchange translations are recognised in the Statement of operations
and changes in net assets in determining the result of the reporting year.

Unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the valuation of the portfolio at market value
are included in net change in unrealised on appreciation or depreciation on investments. Realised
foreign exchange gains or losses arising on sale of investments and derivatives are included in realized
gains or losses on investments and derivatives. Other net foreign exchange gains or losses are included
in realized gains and losses on foreign exchange in the Statement of operations and changes in net
asseals,
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 - Interest income on investments

Interest income is accrued on a daily basis.

Note 3 - Trustee fees

The Trustee, a related party to the Series Trust, is entiled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a trustee fee of USD 15,000 per annum, calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in
arrears.

Note 4 - Administrator and Custodian fees

The Administrator and Custodian are entiled to receive from the trust fund of the Series Trust a
combined administration and custody fee of 0.12% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of
each class of Units calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears. The Calculation
Amount is the issue price applicable to the relevant class of Units multiplied by the number of Units of
such class of Units in issue at the time of calculation,

Note 5 - Management fees

The Manager, a related party to the Series Trust, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a management fee of 0.11% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class
of Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 6 - Agent Company fees

The Agent Company, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the
Series Trust a fee of up to 0.01% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of
Units, calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903

MNote 7 - Distributor fees

The Distributor, a related party of the Manager, is entitled to receive out of the trust fund of the Series
Trust a fee of up to 0.53% per annum of the Calculation Amount in respect of each class of Units
calculated and accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears.

Note 8 - Collateral arrangement

In order to mitigate the counterparty risk exposure arising from the option transactions, the Trustee,
for the account of the Series Trust, has entered into a collateral arrangement with the option
counterparty. This arrangement is based on an industry-standard ISDA (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association) Master Agreement and a CSA (Credit Support Annex). In terms of this
arrangement, the option counterparty delivers cash (USD) collateral to the Custodian for the account
of the Series Trust, The collateral pool is marked to market and adjusted on each Valuation Day.

As at December 31, 2020, the amount of collateral required is USD 2,664,613.17 and the amount of
collateral received Citigroup Global Markets Limited ("CGML") and deposited into a collateral account
for the benefit of the Series Trust is USD 2,440,000, Please note that the difference bebween the
minimum required and actual collateral received is below the minimum transfer amount of
usD 250,000,

Note 9 - Taxation

9.1 - Cayman Islands

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Trust has recelved an undertaking
from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income, profits and
capital taxes for a period of 50 years from October 21, 2008, the date of the creation of the Trust.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these financial statements,

9.2 - Other Countries

The Series Trust may be subject to withholding or other taxes on certain income sourced in other
countries.

Note 10 - Option contracts

Lookback call option transactions that provides the Active portion are entered into bebween two parties,
the Manager, acting as agent for the Trustee, and CGML.
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Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{As at December 31, 2020)
Target Setting at Matunty Fund 1903

Note 10 - Option contracts (continued)

As at December 31, 2020, the Series Trust has the following open lookback call options:

10.1 - Option contracts of AUD Denominated Units

_Quantity Index Option ccy Maturity Cost  Market value
27.700,343.45  CALL AUD Index 542 AUD 12/18/2023 242655010  1,508,408.33

10.2 - Option contracts of USD Denominated Units

_Quantity Index Option ccy Maturity Cost  Market value
134,140,857.98  CALL USD Index 542 UsD 12/18/2023 11 375,144.75 3,658,222 41
_Total {combined) ooy Cost  Market value
usD 13231,298.73 48128222

Note 11 - Exchange rates

The exchange rates against USD used as at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Currency Exchange rate
AUD 1.20732

Note 12 - Significant events during the year

The Manager has made an assessment of the situation of the Series Trust in the context of the
COVID-19 pandemic and, while financial markets have been very volatile and the worldwide health
situation remains difficult, confirms that it has no plan to terminate the Series Trust either as of the
date of the Auditors’ opinion or in the foreseeable future. The Manager will continue to closely monitor
the situation of the Series Trust in the best interests of the unithelders.

Note 13 - Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, the Series Trust concludes that there are no significant
subsequent events that require adjustment andfor disclosure to these financial statements.
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2022
107,980,571.42 13,914,376,433
126,541.50 16,306,138
107,854,029.92 13,898,070,295
11,027,083.451
9.781 1,260
2022
30,875,955.64 2,831,325,132
37,638.71 3,451,470
30,838,316.93 2,827,873,662
3,115,128.320
9.900 908
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200 200 3,284 2022
100 1,642
2022 9,081 8,687 48

32
622
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2003
2007

27

1,600

2022 45
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1,919,815,321
37,222
395,300,898,768

25
1

19
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131
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2022 28
16.42
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2021 12 31
12 31
2021 2021 2020 2020
81,829,082 1,343,633,526 40,012,764 657,009,585
3,473 57,027 839,852 13,790,370
(161,332) (2,649,071) (126,878) (2,083,337)
81,671,223 1,341,041,482 40,725,738 668,716,618

(61,875,944)

(1,016,003,000)

(24,019,968)

(394,407,875)

19,795,279 325,038,481 16,705,770 274,308,743
@ (3,286,113) (53,957,975) (2,621,364) (43,042,797)
16,509,166 271,080,506 14,084,406 231,265,947

30
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 2021 2020 2020
© 15,021 246,645 17,202 282,457
6,373,203 104,647,993 6,375,325 104,682,837
© 623,061 10,230,662
309,193,039 5,076,949,700 281,524,689 4,622,635,393
315,566,242 5,181,597,694 288,523,075 4,737,548,892
28,471,600 467,503,672 18,587,209 305,201,972
© 647,429 10,630,784
29,119,029 478,134,456 18,587,209 305,201,972
286,447,213 4,703,463,237 269,935,866 4,432,346,920
286,462,234 4,703,709,882 269,953,068 4,432,629,377
@) 2,000,200 32,843,284 2,000,200 32,843,284
284,462,034 4,670,866,598 267,952,868 4,399,786,093
286,462,234 4,703,709,882 269,953,068 4,432,629,377
2022 27
11 30
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2020 2,000,200 253,868,462 255,868,662
14,084,406 14,084,406
2020 12 31 2,000,200 267,952,868 269,953,068
2021 2,000,200 267,952,868 269,953,068
16,509,166 16,509,166
2021 12 31 2,000,200 284,462,034 286,462,234
2020 32,843,284 4,168,520,146 4,201,363,430
231,265,947 231,265,947
2020 12 31 32,843,284 4,399,786,093 4,432,629,377
2021 32,843,284 4,399,786,093 4,432,629,377
271,080,506 271,080,506
2021 12 31 32,843,284 4,670,866,598 4,703,709,882
11 30

133/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 2021 2020 2020
19,795,279 325,038,481 16,705,770 274,308,743
3,473 57,027 839,852 13,790,370
19,791,806 324,981,455 15,865,918 260,518,374
2,122 34,843 3,573,875 58,683,028
9,884,391 162,301,700 10,666,028 175,136,180
29,678,319 487,317,998 30,105,821 494,337,581
2,013,442 33,060,718 6,904,322 113,368,967
27,664,877 454,257,280 23,201,499 380,968,614
3,473 57,027 839,852 13,790,370
3,473 57,027 839,852 13,790,370
27,668,350 454,314,307 24,041,351 394,758,983
281,524,689 4,622,635,393 257,483,338 4,227,876,410
12 3 309,193,039 5,076,949,700 281,524,689 4,622,635,393
11 30
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2021 2010

81,829,082 40,012,764
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2021 2020
25,849,811 6,456,764
23,385,076 8,107,596
10,511,444 7,988,111

475,086 468,286
697,584 332,108
190,903
956,943 476,200

2021 2020
(6,155) (20,001)
3,290,087 2,638,814
3,283,932 2,618,813
2,181 2,551
3,286,113 2,621,364

2021 16.5 2020  16.5

2021 2020

19,795,279 16,705,770

16.5 2020 16.5 3,266,221 2,756,452
26,047 (115,087)

(6,155) (20,001)

3,286,113 2,621,364
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2021 2020
(623,061) 3,662,448
(2,013,442) (6,904,322)

(6,155) (20,001)
3,290,087 2,638,814
647,429 (623,061)
19,753 19,753
(2,551) (2,551)
17,202 17,202
17,202 17,202
(2,181) (2,181)
15,021 15,021
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383

2021 2020
7,778,000 7,478,000
9,857,857 9,277,210
2,431,474 2,227,319

808,200 750,500

20,875,531 19,733,029
2021 2020

309,193,039 281,524,689

2021 2020
5,018,058 6,008,164
1,239,606 236,399

115,539 130,762

6,373,203 6,375,325
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2021 2020
2,719,835 4,884,580
25,283,479 13,241,981
468,286 460,648
28,471,600 18,587,209
2021 2020
12 31 20,002 2,000,200 20,002 2,000,200

135

2021 12
286,462,234 2020 269,953,068
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10
43

44

45

46

47
2021 29
225 49 2021 16

50 2021 30

54 2021
30
2012

18 19 20 25 26 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 36 37 38 39 40
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 49 50 54
0.01 1.8

18 19 39 45
72 50 55
55 2021 12 31 19
39 45 23,385,076
2020 :6,967,624
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2021
25,849,811 2020 6,456,764
2021 2020
20,875,531 19,733,029
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2021
2021 2020
2021 2020
3,419 952,524 8,172,619 3,609 727,218 7,932,630
2,617,546 3,768,281 4,356,006 2,008,536
(1,473,267)  (25,290,774) (5,970,427) (9,507,160)
3,419 2,096,803 (13,349,874) 3,609 (887,203) 434,006
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2021 2020
1.87 64 5.13 185
(1.01) (35)
0.14 2,936 5.26 (46,627)
(0.85) (17,823)
2020
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
12
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
13 2021 12 31
2021 12 31
17

2022
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Citigrown First invesirnant Managemen! Limited
Finencial statemments for ihe yeer ended 31 December 2021

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2021
{Expressed in Hong Kong dolfars)

Note 2021 2020

3 3

Revenue 2 81,829,082 40,012,764

Interest income 3,473 839,852

Foreign exchange loss (161,332) (126,878)

81,671,223 40,725,738

Cther operating expenses (61,875,044) (24,019 ,968)

Profit before taxation 3 19,795,279 16,705,770

Income tax 4(a) (3,286,113) (2.621,364)
Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year 18,509 166 14,084 408

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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Chigroup Firet Imvastmeant Managament Limifed
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MNotfe 2021 2020
5 $
Non-current assets
Deferred tax assels 4(c) 15,021 17,202
Current assets
Accounts receivable and other assets T 6,373,203 5,375,325
Tax receivable 4(c) - 623 081
Cash and cash equivalents G 309,193,039 281,524 689
315,566,242 288,523,075
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8 28 471,600 18,587,209
Current taxation 4(c) 3 B47,429 -
29.119,029 IEﬁET.EﬂE
Met current assets 286,447,213 289,935 866
NET ASSETS 288 462,234 268,953,068
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 9(a) 2,000,200 2,000,200
Reserves _2?{_%62,034 267 952,868
TOTAL EQUITY 286 462 234 269 953,068

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 9 7 APR 2022

Tohe -

=44 = Fi En |
.Q# JEL Frenlg gipnpied ¥,

)

Directors

)
)

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statemants.
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Crtigroup First invesimen! Managenent Limiled

Financial stafements for (he yeer ended 31 Decembar 2021

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2021
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share Ratainaed

capial profits Tatal

$ s $

Balance at 1 January 2020 2,000 200 253 BBE 462 256 B68,662
Taotal comprehensive income for

the year - 14,064 406 14,084,408

Balance at 31 December 2020 2,000,200 267,952 BE6S 269 953,068

Balance at 1 January 2021 2,000,200 267,952 BG68 269 953,068
Total comprehensive income for

the year - 16,508,166 16,508,166

Balance at 31 December 2021 2.000.200 284 462 034 286,462,234

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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Catigrowe First invesiment Mansgemend Limited
Firvencrl slatements for the yeer ended 31 Decernber 2027

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note 2021 2020
3 5
Operating activities
Profit befare taxation 19,795 279 16,705,770
Adjustment for:
Interest income (3.473) (839 852)
Operating cashflow before changes in
working capital 15,791,808 15,865,918
Decrease in accounts recaivable and other
assets 2122 3,573,875
Increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses - 988439 10,666,028
Cash generated from operating activities 29678319 30,105,821
Heng Kang Profits Tax paid {2,013442) (6,904,322)
Net cash generated from operating activities 27 664 877 23,201 499
Investing activities
Interest received 3,473 839,852
Net cash generated from investing activites . 3,473 839852
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27 BBR.350 24,041,351
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 281,524 689 257 483,338
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 8 308,193,038 281,524 689

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial stalements,

10
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Citigroup First frvestment Managamen! Limited
Financie! slelaments for the pear endied 31 Decermbar 2021

Notes to the financial statements
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
{"HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company are disclosad below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Mote 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments o the extent that they are relevant to the Company for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the histarical
cost basis.

The Company has chosen Hong Kong dollars as its functional currency which reflects the
economic substance of the underlying assets and circumstances relevant to the Company.
All values are roundad to the nearest Hong Kong dollar, unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are basad on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual resulte may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewead on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

ravision affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
ravision affects both current and future periods.

11
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Citigroup Firs! invesiment Managemen! Limied
Flnancial statemarnds for the paar anded 37 Decambar 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies

A number of new standards are effective from 1 January 2021 but they do not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprisa cash at bank and on hand, demand daposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of malurity al acquisition.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Company as revenue when it arises from the trading activities, the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

Where the contract conlains a financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing componant
which provides a significant financing benefit to the Company, revenue recognised under that
cantract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Company takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Company's revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

- Investment management fee income is recognised when the relevant services have been
rendered.

- Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

12
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Citigrowp First invasimant Managemant LimiTed
Financial statemants for the year ended 37 December 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive abligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of maoney
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to sattle
the cbligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannat be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible cbligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosad as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are inilially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interast method. less allowance for credit losses (see note
1{k){v)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immateral. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at inveice amounts less allowance for impaiment of doubtful
debts,

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment and are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated fulure cash flows, discounted at the asset's original
affective interest rate where the effect of discounting is materal,

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Company about events that have an impact on the asset's estimated future cash flows such
as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Keng dollars at the exchange

rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

13
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Ciigroug First Imvestment Managemant Limined
Fmancial sfaternents for the year ended 31 December 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income fax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
excepl to the extent that they relate lo items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the {axable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacled al the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment lo
tax payable in respact of previous years.

Deferred tax assets arise from deductible temporary differences, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the tax bases. Deferred tax assels also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be ulilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured basad on the expecled manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets are not
discounted.

Current tax balances and deferred lax balances, and movemenis therein, are presented

separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the

Company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies to income tax levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that
person:

(il  has contrel or joint control over the Company;
iy has significant influence aver the Company; or

(iiy is @ member of the key management parsonnel of the Company or the
Company's parent.

14
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Crigroup Firs! investmen! Managemen! Limded
Financial statemands for the year ended 37 December 2027

Significant accounting policies (continued)
{b)  An entity iz related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

{ii  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associale or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii} The entity, or any mamber of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or fo the Company's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expectad o
influence, or be influenced by, that persan in their dealings with the entity.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price, plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attrioutable 1o the acquisition or issue
of the financial asset or financial liability.

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date, any gains and
lesses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are
recaorded.

15
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Citigroup First imeestman! Managernent Limited
Financia! stataments for the year ended 31 Cecember 2027

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)  Classification and subsequent measuremant

(A)

Classification of financial assets

Oni initial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI")

All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FVTPL.
Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business medel in which a financial
assetl is held, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the
business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice.
This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual
interast income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration
of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expectad cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets,

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
managemaeant;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the managers of the business are compensated: e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods. the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity

Financial agsets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held

to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to
sell financial assets.
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Citigroup First Invesiment Management Limited
Financial siglemems for the year ended 31 December 2021

Significant accounting policies {continued)

(B)

Assessment whather contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessmenl, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asget on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credil risk associated with the principal amount autstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrumeni. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

- gontingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features): and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.q. periodical reset
of interest rates)

Reclassifications

Financial agsets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
pariod after the Company changes its businass model for managing financial assets,

Classification of financial assets

Loans and recaivablas

Loans and receivables include amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, accounts
receivable and other assets and cash and cash equivalents. These assets are
measured at amorised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities includes amount due to fellow subsidiaries and accounts payable

and accrued expenses. These liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest mathod.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.
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Cigroup Srst invesiment Managaman! Limited
Financiel siatements for the yeer ended 31 December 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged. cancelled or expires.

The Company uses the waighted average method to defermine realised gains and losses to
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position where there is a legally enfarceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultanecusly.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low cradit rigk at the reporting date; and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occuming over the
expected life of the asset) has net increased significantly since initial recognition

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial instrument to have low credit risk when its credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of 'investment grade’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expeacted lifa
of a financial instrumeant.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs thal resull from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrumeant is lass than 12 months).

The maximum pericd considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual peried
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset
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Citfgrowe Fiest invasimant! Managamant Limited
Financial statemanits for the yesr ended 371 Decewmber 2021

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporling date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credil-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occumad,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 80 days past due; or

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation

Prasentation of allowance far ECLs in the statement of financial positian

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

White-off

The gross camying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a poriion thereof.

Revenue

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of investment management services.

2021 2020
3 5
Revenue from contracts with customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15
Investment management fee income 81,829,082 40,012 764

19

165/266



{a)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cittgroup Firsf Invesimenr Managemant Limitad
Financial stalements for the year anded 31 Decembar 2021

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is amived at after charging:

2021 2020

$ 5

Management fee expenses 25 849 811 6,456, 784

Sub-manager fee expenses 23,385,078 8,107,586

Legal and professional fee 10.511.444 7,988 111

Auditors’ remuneration 475,086 488,286

Custody expenses 697.584 332 108

Printing expenses - 190,903

Others 056,943 478,200
Income tax

Income tax in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:
2021 2020
5 s
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
Over-provision in respect of the prior years (6.155) (20,001)
Frovision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 3,280,087 2,638,814
3283832 2618813
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2,181 2.551
3286113 2,621,384

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.
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Citigrowp First imvestmen! Managemani Limited
Finenclal stafements for the yesr ended 37 December 2021

Income tax (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax charged to profit or loss and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:

2021 2020
5 %

Profit before taxation 19,795,279 16,705,770
Motional tax on profit before taxation at 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) 3,266,221 2,756,452
Tax effect of non-taxable income and non-deductible

loss 26,047 (115,087}
Over-provision in respeacl of prior years {6,155) (20,001)
Actual tax expense 3,286,113 2,621,364

Current tax payable/(receivable) in the statement of financial position represents:

Mote 2021 2020

B 3

Current taxation bought forward (623.061) 3,662 448

Profits Tax Paid (2,013,442) (5,804 322)
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to

prior years (6,155) (20,001)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the

year 4(a) 3.290,087 2638814

647,429 (623,061)
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Citfgroup Firsr invesimant Mansgement Limited
Financial stadements for the year ended 31 Decomber 2021

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of defermed tax assets recognised in the statement of financial position and
the movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation in
excess of the

relatad
depraciation
allowances Total
$ $
At 1 January 2020 19,753 19,753
Charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (2,551) (2,551)
At 31 December 2020 17,202 17,202
At 1 January 2021 17,202 17,202
Charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (2,181) (2,181)
Al 31 December 2021 15,021 15,021

As at 31 December 2021, there is no significant deferred tax asset or liability not recognised
or provided for (2020: SNil).

Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2021 2020

5 5

Directors’ fees - -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,778,000 7.478,000
Discretionary bonuses 9,857 857 9277210
Share basad payments 2431474 2227319
Retirement scheme contributions 808,200 750,500
20,875,531 19,733,029
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Citigroup Frst invesimen! Managerment Lirmited
Financial stalements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2021 2020

5 ]

Cash at bank 309,193,039 281 ,52_4.539
Accounts receivable and other assets

2021 2020

3 -

Investment management fee receivable 5,018,058 6,003,164

Legal and professional fee receivable 1,239 606 236,399

Others 115,539 130,762

5,373,203 6,375,325

All of the above fee receivables are due from funds managed by the Company. All the fee
receivables are interest free, unsecured and expected to be setiled within three months,

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

2021 2020

B $

Legal and professional fee payable 2,719,835 4 884 580
Other payable 25,283,479 13,241 981
Audit fee 468,286 460,648
28. 471,600 18,587,208

All accounts payable and accrued charges are interest free, unsecured and expected to be
settled within three months.
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Ciligroug First Invesiment Management Limited
Financial sielerments for the year ended 31 December 2021

Share capital
Issued share capital
2021 2020
No. of Neo. of
shares Aot shares Amount
£ L
Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:

At 1 January and 31 December 20,002 2,000,200 20,002 2,000,200

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares
of the Company do not have a par value.

The halders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All erdinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Campany's primary objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concemn. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of addilional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group's capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. On this basis the amount
of capital employed at 31 December 2021 was $286,462,234 (2020: $269,853,068).

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Company or the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The results of the directors’ review of the Company's capital structure are used as a basis for
the determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

As a licensad corporation registered under the Hang Kong Securities and Futuras Ordinance,
the Company is also subject to the capital requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules ("FRR™). The minimum liguid capital requirement is the
higher of $100,000 and the variable required liquid capital as defined in the FRR. The
Company monitors its compliance with the requirements of the FRR on a daily basis. The
Company complied with the requirernents of the FRR at all times during the year.
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Ciigroun First nvesimant Managemant Limifed
Financial statemants for tha year anded 31 Dacember 2021

Material related party transactions

In addition o those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had
transactions in the normal course of businass with related parties as follows:

Fee income and expenses
Note 2021 2020
5 3
Fee income
Investment management fee income (i) 81,829,082 40,012,764
Fee expenses
Sub-manager fee expenses {iii) (23,385,078) (6,967 624)

The Company is the fund manager of the following funds during the year;
Asia High Yield Bond Fund ("Fund Series 18") {Terminated on 15 Jun 2021)
Mexico Bond Fund ("Fund Series 197)

- Templeton Global Bond Fund Foreign Currency Series ("Fund Seres 20")
Global Balance Plus Fund (*Fund Series 25"
US Focused Growth Equity Foreign Currency Series ("Fund Series 27")
Treasury Premium Plus Fund (*Fund Series 28")

- Fixed Income Fund ("Fund Series 30"} (Terminated on 23 Dec 2021)

- Treasury Premium Plus Il Fund (*Fund Series 317)
USD Denominated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1703 ("Fund Serieg 327)
JPN High Dividend Equity with Short Index Allocation ("Fund Series 33")

- USD Denominated Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1710 {*Fund Series 34"

- JGB Asset Swap Fund ("Fund Series 367)
Mikkei 225 Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 37")

- Target Selting at Maturity Fund 1802 ("Fund Series 387}

- China Hong Kong Equity Opportunities Fund { Fund Series 39%)

- Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1809 ("Fund Series 407)
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Citigroup First imvestimant Managamant Limitad
Financial stataments for the year ended 31 December 2021

10 Material related party transactions (continued)
- Mulli Assei Systematic Strategies Fund ("Fund Series 417)
- Target Setting At Maturity Fund 1803 ("Fund Series 427)
Flexibeta Fund (VTS5 Defensive and WT10 Active) {"Fund Series 437)

USD Denominated Citigroup Note, Return Referring the High Watermark of Global Multi
Asset Strategy Fund ("Fund Series 44")

Global Multi-Thematic Equity Fund ("Fund Series 45)
US Equity Intraday Momentum Fund (“Fund Series 457)
- Algebris Financial Hybrid Securities Fund ("Fund Senes 477} (Launched on 29 Jan 2021)
Mikkei 225 Bear Intraday Fund {"Fund Series 487) (Launched on 16 Mar 2021)
US Large Cap Equity Intraday Fund ("Fund Series 50%) (Launched on 30 Aug 2021)

Citigroup Mote Target Setting at Maturity Fund ("Fund Series 54") (Launched on 30 Sept
2021)

- CGMYL Index Target \olatility Fund 2012 (SP) ("CGMYL")
Kokusai Turkish Bond Open (1M) Active Currency Hedge ("KAMT)

(i) The Company is entitled to fee income from the following funds under its management:
Investment management/advisory fee income
For Fund Series 18, 19, 20, 25, 26, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43,
44 45 48 47, 49 50, 54, CGMYL and KAM, fees are calculated at 0.01% to 0.62% per
annum of the net asset value of the funds.

(i) Pursuant to the sub-management agreement signed between the Company and the
sub-managers for Series 18, 18, 39 and 45, the sub-managers’ fee expenses are payable to
the sub-managers calculated at 72%, 50%, 55% and 55% respectively of the gross
management fee incomea recsived, The total sub-managers’ fee expenses paid to the sub-

managers for Series 19, 30 and 45 as at 31 December 2021 amounted {o $23,385 076
(2020. 36,967 624).
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Citigrowe Firs! invasiman! Managaman! Limied
Financiad slatermants for the year ended 31 Docember 2021

Material related party transactions (continued)

Management fee expenses

The Company paid management fee expenses fo fellow subsidiaries, which provided
ancillary sale support servicas to the Company. The management fee expense for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amountad to 525,849 811 (2020; 56 456,764),

Key management personnel emoluments

Besides the directors’ emoluments disclosed in note 5, there were no other key management
personnel emolumeants.

2021 2020
5 3

Amounts disclosed include emoluments
totalling 20,875,531 19,733,029

Amounts disclosed emoluments to cartain key management personnel were paid by fallow
subsidiaries within Citigroup ("group companies”). The Company did not directly reimburse
the group companies for the service provided.

Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks and foreign currency risk arise in the
narmal course of the Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's
financial management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk
The Company’s credit risk is primarily atiributable to cash and cash eguivalents held at a
fellow subsidiary bank and outstanding fees receivable arising from the Company's

investmeant management activities. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to
credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Management fee receivables are regularly reviewed and settled on a regular schedule. For
the balance due from fellow subsidiaries, management considers the default risk of the
financial assets placed with the group companies to be remote.

The maximum exposune to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of thesa financial
assels as of the end of the reporting period.
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Cifigroue First invesimant Management Limiled
Firenctal statements for the yeer ended 31 December 2027

Financial instruments (continued)
Liguidity risk

The Company's liquidity risk management process is integrated into the liguidity and funding
process and liquidity monitoring framework of Citigroup and broker dealers across the
Citigroup network. Ciligroup pelicy requires Citigroup and broker dealars across the Citigroup
network to maintain a strong liguidity position and ensure sufficient cash flows to meet both
expected and unexpected current and future cash flow and collateral needs.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, all financial liabilities mature within one year or are
repayable on demand. Details of the earliest contractual settlement dates of the financial
liabilities are disclosed in notes 8.

Interest rate risk

The Company dees not have any fixed deposits in 2021 which the exposure to interest rate
risk to the extent that it eams bank interest on cash and cash equivalents is insignificant. The
Company was exposed to interest rate risk only te the extent that it earns bank interast on
cash and cash equivalents in 2021 and 2020.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the possibility that changes in foreign exchange rate will impact the
value of financial instruments.

To minimise the exposures to foreign currency risk, management ensures that the net
exposure is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to cover the foreign currencies.

Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Company to which they relate.

2021 2020
Austrafan Japanase us Australian Japansse us
Dofars Yen Doliars Dollars Yen Dolars
HED HKD HED HEKD HED HKD
squivalent equbralent equivakent equivalenl eauvakent eouivakent
Cash and cash
equivalens 3419 652 524 8172619 3608 T2THB 7932830
Accourts recavabhe
and ofher assels . 2817 546 3.768.281 - 4.356.008 2.008 538
Accounts cayatle
ang accrind
EXDENGES - {1.473.26T) (26,200,774) - (5.870.427) {9,507 160)
Cwerall nat
XS UrE 3419 2,058,803 (13,345,874 3608 (B87,203) 434,008

Hong Kong dollar ("HKD") is pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"). the Company
{herefore consider the rigk of movements in exchange rates belween the USD and the HKD
to be insignificant,
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Clligrowug First Investment Managaman! Limited
Financigl stelements for the year ended 31 December 2021

Financial instruments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change on the Company's profit before tax
that would arise if foreign exchange rate to which the Company has significant exposure at
the end of reporting pericd had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant,

2021 2020

Increase/ lncrease’

(decrease) Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
in foreign fdacreasa) in foreign (decrease)
exchange on profit exchange on profit

rates before tax rafes before tax

Yo 5 % 5

Australian dollars 1.87 64 513 185
(1.01) (35) - -

Japanese Yen 0.14 2,936 526 (45 627)
(0.85) (17.823) - -

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Company which expose the Company
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including intercompany payables
and receivables that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are considered naot to be maternially different
from the carrying values in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020,

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the Company's immediate holding company to
be Citigroup Global Markets Hong Koeng Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in Hang
Kong. This entity produces financial statements but not available for public use. Its ultimate
helding company at 31 December 2021 is considered to be Citigroup Inc., which was
incorperated in the United States of America. Citigroup Inc. produces consolidated financial
statements under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America,
which are available for public use.
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Cltigraug First Imvestment Managamant Limitad

Firrancial statemenis for the year ended 31 December 2021

13 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance confracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the following which may be relevant to

the Company.
Effactive for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Amendments o HKFRS 3, Referance lo the Conceplual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 16, Praperty, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerows Conltracis - Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Confract
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classificalion of Liabilities as Currenl ar 1 January 2023
Non-cument
Amendmenis to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, 1 January 2023
Disclosure of accounting policies
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accouniing esiimates 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax refated to assefs and 1 January 2023

labilities ardsing from a single lransaction

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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2022 2,592 33 4,005
91.67
CIBC 1965
2022 9,015 4,448 122 4,568
2022 28
135.83

Société Anonyme

2022 963

2022 875 5,000
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1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
1993

2020

2020

1.4

1.5 2021 12
12,451 3,145
2020
2020

1.6

2.1

CIMA
CIMA

2.2

184/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.3
2.4 CIMA CIMA
CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6
3.1

CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

3.2

185/266



3.3

3.4

4.1

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

2020

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA 100,000 80,000
CIMA
CIMA
15
80,000 100,000
CIMA
21 CIMA

186/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo0obDoooooo0booo0ood(Ee22200)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.2 CIMA
CIMA
4.3
CIMA
21
4.4 2006 12 27
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3.2 CIMA
5.4 CIMA CIMA 10
CIMA
5.5 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
17
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5.6 CIMA
5.7 CIMA
5.8 CIMA 24,390 30,488
8,536 36,585

42,682
8,536
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2021, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
investment funds in Luxembourg.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information
and report of the board of directors of the manager on pages 5 to 8, statistical information on page 15 and
classification of investments by country and by economic sector on page 17, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg, and

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

June 22, 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of
Citigroup First Investment Management Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Citigroup First Investment Management Limited (“the Company”) set out
on pages 7 to 30, which comprise the statement of financia position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of profit of
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2021 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised), The audit of licensed corporations and associated entities of intermediaries, issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA'
s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thisregard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and to
report to you on the other matters set out in the preceding paragraph, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s interna control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’ s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 April 2022
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Target Setting at Maturity Fund 1903 (the “Series Trust”), a
series trust of Red Arc Global Investments (Cayman) Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets and
schedule of investments as at December 31, 2020, the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and changes in its net
assets for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
investment funds in Luxembourg.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standard) (“IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financia statements in the Cayman Idlands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The Series Trust may translate these financial statements and our auditors report from English to Japanese.
We have not been engaged to perform any procedures over the trandation. In the event of any inconsistencies
between the English and the Japanese versions of the financial statements and our auditors report, the English
version shall prevail.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general information
and report of board of directors of the manager included on pages 5 to 8, statistical information included on
page 15 and classification of investments by country and by economical sector included on page 17, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to investment funds in Luxembourg, and

for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management of the Series Trust.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

KPMG

June 8§, 2021
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